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$10,000 per day per violation, as
required by 40 CFR 70.11(a)(3)(ii).

z. False Statements and Tampering

Part 70 also requires that criminal
fines be recoverable in a maximum
amount of $10,000 per day per violation
against any person who knowingly
makes any false material statement,
representation or certification in any
form, in any notice or report required by
a permit, or who knowingly renders
inaccurate any required monitoring
device or method. See 40 CFR
70.11(a)(3)(iii). Idaho law does not
appear to contain such authority. The
Idaho Attorney General has stated that
the Department has the authority to
include such a prohibition in each
permit and intends to do so. This
authority, coupled with the general
criminal provisions of Idaho Code 39—
117(2), could provide sufficient
authority for making knowing violations
of such requirements subject to criminal
liability, but only if the Department is
specifically required to include such
prohibitions in each title V permit. As
a condition of full approval, the State
must demonstrate to EPA’s satisfaction
that it has the criminal enforcement
authorities required by 40 CFR
70.11(a)(3)(ii).

aa. Environmental Audit Statute

In 1995, the Idaho legislature enacted
an environmental audit statute, which
prohibits the State from compelling a
source, with certain limited exceptions,
to provide the State a report that meets
the definition of an ““‘environmental
audit report.” See Idaho Code 9-804.
The statute also grants a source
immunity from civil or criminal liability
for any violations voluntarily disclosed
by the source to the State in an
environmental audit report. See ldaho
Code 9-809.

Although EPA is concerned that the
audit privilege of Idaho Code 9-804
could be misused to shield bad actors
and frustrate access to crucial factual
information, EPA does not believe that
the statute poses a bar to full approval
of Idaho’s operating permit program. As
EPA has recently stated, however, EPA
intends to scrutinize enforcement more
closely in States, such as Idaho, with
broad audit privileges to ensure such
statutes do not prevent States from
pursuing appropriate enforcement
action and obtaining appropriate
penalties. See 60 CFR 16875 (April 3,
1995) (Voluntary Environmental Self-
Policing and Self-disclosure Interim
Policy Statement). If, during program
implementation, EPA determines that
Idaho Code 9-804 unduly interferes
with Idaho’s enforcement

responsibilities under part 70, EPA will
consider this grounds for withdrawing
program approval in accordance with 40
CFR 70.10(c).

EPA believes, however, that Idaho
Code 9-809, which grants a source
immunity from civil or criminal
prosecution for violations discovered
during an environmental audit which
are voluntarily disclosed, does
impermissibly interfere with the Idaho’s
enforcement requirements under 40 CFR
70.11 and thus poses a bar to full
approval. Part 70 requires a State to
have authority to recover penalties for
each day of violation. By granting a
source absolute immunity for certain
voluntarily disclosed violations, the
State has restricted its authority to
collect penalties for each day of
violation. EPA therefore proposes to
require, as a condition of full approval,
that Idaho eliminate the immunity
currently granted under Idaho Code 9—
809 for voluntarily disclosed violations
discovered through an environmental
audit report or to demonstrate to EPA’s
satisfaction that ldaho Code 9-809 does
not impermissibly interfere with the
enforcement requirements of part 70.

bb. Correction of Typographical Errors
and Cross-references

The operating permit regulations
submitted by the State of Idaho contain
several typographical errors and
erroneous cross references that could
interfere with application and
implementation of the Idaho operating
permits program. In reviewing the ldaho
program, EPA has made the following
assumptions in interpreting the Idaho
regulations and proposes to require, as
a condition of full approval, that Idaho
be required to correct these errors in
order to obtain full approval.

i. IDAPA 16.01.01.006.31: The
reference in the definition of “‘emissions
unit” should be to 42 U.S.C. sections
7561 through 75610 rather than to 42
U.S.C. sections 7561 through 7561.

ii. IDAPA 16.01.01.008.05.f: The
reference in subsection (f) of the
definition of “‘applicable requirement”
should be to 42 U.S.C. section 7661c(b),
rather than to section 7661a(b) (i.e. to
section 504(b) of the Clean Air Act
rather than to section 502(b)).

iii. IDAPA 16.01.01.008.12: The
reference to the general permit
regulation in the definition of ““general
permit” should be to section 335 (i.e.,
IDAPA 16.01.01.335), rather than to 322.

iv. IDAPA 16.01.01.008.14: The
reference in the definition of ““‘major
facility” to the definition of “facility”
should be to section 006.35 (i.e., IDAPA
16.01.01.006.35), rather than to 006.34.

v. IDAPA 16.01.01.322.10.1.i: The
reference in the requirements for the
initial compliance plan should be to “a
verifiable sequence of actions’ rather
than to *‘a variable sequence of actions.”

vi. IDAPA 16.01.01.384.01.a.vi: The
reference to compliance schedule in this
subsection should be to section 322.12.d
(i.e., IDAPA 16.01.01.322.12.d), rather
than to section 322.13.d.

vii. IDAPA 16.01.01.385.01.a.iv: The
words “‘of Title | of the Clean Air Act”
or some other description of the type of
provisions being referred to appears to
have been deleted after the phrase ““as
a modification under any provision.”

viii. IDAPA 16.01.01.387.02.a.iii: The
word “least’ appears to have been
deleted from the phrase *‘shall be sent
at one (1) day.”

3. Effect of Proposed Action
a. Effect of Disapproval

If EPA were to take final action
disapproving the State of Idaho’s title V
submittal, EPA would be required to
apply one of the sanctions in section
179(b) of the Clean Air Act on the date
18 months after the effective date of the
disapproval, unless prior to that date the
State had submitted a revised program
and EPA had determined that the
revised program corrected the
deficiencies that prompted the
disapproval. Moreover, if the
Administrator found a lack of good faith
on the part of the State, both sanctions
under section 179(b) would apply after
the expiration of the 18-month period
until the Administrator determined that
the State had come into compliance. In
all cases, if, six months after EPA
applied the first sanction, the State had
not submitted a revised program that
EPA had determined corrected the
deficiencies that prompted disapproval,
a second sanction would be required.

In addition, discretionary sanctions
may be applied where warranted any
time after EPA has disapproved a State
program. Moreover, if EPA were to
disapprove the State program and had
not granted full approval to a corrective
submittal by November 15, 1995, EPA
must promulgate, administer and
enforce a Federal permits program for
Idaho.

b. Effect of Interim Approval

Final interim approval may be granted
for up to 2 years following the effective
date of final interim approval, and can
not be renewed. During the interim
approval period, Idaho would be
protected from sanctions, and EPA
would not be obligated to promulgate,
administer and enforce a Federal
permits program for the State of Idaho.



